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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

______________

﻿

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

 X     QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

﻿

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2018

or

﻿

___   TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

﻿

For the transition period from _______________ to _______________

﻿

OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

OHI HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

﻿
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)
﻿
Maryland 1-11316 38-3041398
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(Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.) (Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.) (Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.)
Delaware 333-203447-11 36-4796206
(OHI Healthcare Properties Limited
Partnership)

(OHI Healthcare Properties Limited
Partnership)

(OHI Healthcare Properties Limited
Partnership)

(State of incorporation or organization)(Commission file number) (IRS Employer Identification No.)
303 International Circle, Suite 200, Hunt Valley, MD 21030
(Address of principal executive offices)
﻿
(410) 427-1700
(Telephone number, including area code)
﻿

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

﻿

Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. Yes   ☒No   ☐OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership Yes   ☒No   ☐

﻿

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit such files).   

﻿

Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. Yes   ☒No   ☐OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership Yes   ☒No   ☐

﻿

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated
filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one:)

﻿

Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.

﻿

Large accelerated filer☒Accelerated filer ☐Non-accelerated filer ☐
Smaller reporting company
☐

Emerging growth company
☐

﻿

OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership

﻿

Large accelerated filer ☐Accelerated filer ☐Non-accelerated filer ☒
Smaller reporting
company ☐

Emerging growth
company ☐

﻿
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If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the
Exchange Act.   

﻿

﻿
Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.     ☐ OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership  ☐
﻿

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

﻿

﻿
Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. Yes  ☐ No  ☒OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership Yes   ☐ No   ☒
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuers’ classes of common stock as of October 31, 2018

﻿

﻿
Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.
Common Stock, $.10 par value 200,696,539
﻿
OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership
N/A No common stock outstanding 
(Class) (Number of shares)

﻿

﻿

﻿
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﻿

﻿

EXPLANATORY NOTE

﻿

This report combines the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2018 of Omega
Healthcare Investors, Inc. and OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership (“Omega OP”).  Unless stated otherwise
or the context otherwise requires, (i) references to “Omega” or the “Company” means Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc.
and its consolidated subsidiaries, (ii) references to “Parent” refer to Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. without regard to
its consolidated subsidiaries, and (iii) references to “Omega OP” means OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership
and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

﻿

Omega is a self-administered real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.  Omega is
structured as an umbrella partnership REIT (“UPREIT”) under which all of Omega's assets are owned directly or
indirectly by, and all of Omega's operations are conducted directly or indirectly through, its operating partnership
subsidiary, Omega OP. 

﻿

Parent directly owned approximately 96% of the issued and outstanding partnership units in Omega OP (the “Omega
OP Units”) at September 30, 2018.    Each Omega OP Unit (other than those owned by Parent) is redeemable at the
election of the holder for cash equal to the then-fair market value of one share of common stock of Parent, subject to
Parent’s election to exchange the Omega OP Units tendered for redemption for common stock of the Parent on a
one-for-one basis in an unregistered transaction, subject to adjustment as set forth in the partnership agreement.  The
management of Parent consists of the same members as the management of Omega OP. 

﻿

The financial results of Omega OP are consolidated into the financial statements of Omega.  Omega has no significant
assets other than its investments in Omega OP.  Omega and Omega OP are managed and operated as one
entity.  Omega OP has no significant assets other than its interests in non-guarantor subsidiaries.

﻿

We believe it is important for investors to understand the few differences between Omega and Omega OP in the
context of how we operate as a consolidated company.  Omega acts as the general partner of Omega OP.  Net
proceeds from equity issuances by Parent are contributed to Omega OP in exchange for additional partnership units.
Parent and Omega OP incur indebtedness.  The net proceeds of the Parent’s borrowings are loaned to Omega OP.  The
outstanding senior notes and certain other debt of Parent is guaranteed by Omega OP. 

﻿

The presentation of debt and related interest, including amounts accrued, stockholders’ equity, owners’ equity and
noncontrolling interests are the main areas of difference between the consolidated financial statements of Omega and
Omega OP.  The differences between debt, stockholders’ equity and owners’ equity result from differences in the debt
or equity issued at the Omega and Omega OP levels. With respect to owners’ equity, the units held by the partners in
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Omega OP other than the Parent are accounted for as owners’ equity in Omega OP’s financial statements and as
noncontrolling interests in Omega’s financial statements.  Although classified differently, total debt and equity of
Omega and Omega OP are the same.

﻿

We believe combining the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of Omega and Omega OP into this single report results in
the following benefits:

﻿

· combined reports better reflect how management and the analyst community view the business as a single operating
unit;

· combined reports enhance investors’ understanding of Omega and Omega OP by enabling them to view the business
as a whole and in the same manner as management;

· combined reports are more efficient for Omega and Omega OP and result in savings in time, effort and expense; and
· combined reports are more efficient for investors by reducing duplicative disclosure and providing a single
document for their review.

﻿

In order to highlight the differences between Omega and Omega OP, the separate sections in this report for Omega
and Omega OP specifically refer to Omega and Omega OP.  In the sections that combine disclosure of Omega and
Omega OP, this report refers to “we” and “us” actions or holdings as being “our” actions or holdings. Although Omega OP
and its subsidiaries hold all of our assets, we believe that reference to “we,” “us” or “our” in this context is appropriate
because the business is one enterprise and we operate substantially all of our business through Omega OP.

﻿

﻿

﻿
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﻿

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

﻿

Item 1 - Financial Statements

﻿

OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿ September
30, December 31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (Unaudited)
ASSETS
Real estate properties
Real estate investments $ 7,700,636 $ 7,655,960 
Less accumulated depreciation (1,515,846) (1,376,828)
Real estate investments – net 6,184,790 6,279,132 
Investments in direct financing leases – net 163,467 364,965 
Mortgage notes receivable – net 708,178 671,232 
﻿ 7,056,435 7,315,329 
Other investments – net 511,668 276,342 
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture 32,159 36,516 
Assets held for sale – net 17,826 86,699 
Total investments 7,618,088 7,714,886 
﻿
Cash and cash equivalents 9,768 85,937 
Restricted cash 1,371 10,871 
Accounts receivable – net 336,825 279,334 
Goodwill 644,201 644,690 
Other assets 31,711 37,587 
Total assets $ 8,641,964 $ 8,773,305 
﻿
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Revolving line of credit $ 360,000 $ 290,000 
Term loans – net 900,847 904,670 
Secured borrowings – net  - 53,098 
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Senior notes and other unsecured borrowings – net 3,327,393 3,324,390 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 253,560 295,142 
Deferred income taxes 14,198 17,747 
Total liabilities 4,855,998 4,885,047 
﻿
Equity:
Common stock $.10 par value authorized – 350,000 shares,
 issued and outstanding – 200,693 shares as of
September 30, 2018 and 198,309 as of December 31, 2017 20,069 19,831 
Common stock – additional paid-in capital 5,012,544 4,936,302 
Cumulative net earnings 2,068,295 1,839,356 
Cumulative dividends paid (3,606,181) (3,210,248)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (32,382) (30,150)
Total stockholders’ equity 3,462,345 3,555,091 
Noncontrolling interest 323,621 333,167 
Total equity 3,785,966 3,888,258 
Total liabilities and equity $ 8,641,964 $ 8,773,305 
﻿

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2
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OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Unaudited

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿ Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
﻿ September 30, September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenue
Rental income $ 192,276 $ 194,063 $ 579,075 $ 580,597 
Income from direct financing leases 264 614 1,374 31,722 
Mortgage interest income 18,396 16,920 51,809 49,173 
Other investment income 10,259 7,245 27,883 21,437 
Miscellaneous income 657 796 1,791 4,250 
Total operating revenues 221,852 219,638 661,932 687,179 
﻿
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization 70,711 71,925 210,681 212,268 
General and administrative 14,240 11,560 45,952 35,625 
Acquisition costs  -  -  - (22)
Impairment on real estate properties 22,868 17,837 26,685 35,610 
Impairment on direct financing leases  - 194,659 15 197,968 
(Recovery) provision for uncollectible accounts (2,000) 11,899 6,363 13,667 
Total operating expenses 105,819 307,880 289,696 495,116 
﻿
Income (loss) before other income and expense 116,033 (88,242) 372,236 192,063 
Other income (expense)
Interest income and other - net (1,214) 4 496 262 
Interest expense (47,764) (47,383) (143,857) (140,509)
Interest – amortization of deferred financing costs (2,238) (2,228) (6,723) (7,273)
Interest – refinancing costs  -  -  - (21,965)
Contractual settlement  -  -  - 10,412 
Realized gain on foreign exchange 27 95 20 235 
Total other expense (51,189) (49,512) (150,064) (158,838)
﻿
Income (loss) before (loss) gain on assets sold 64,844 (137,754) 222,172 33,225 
(Loss) gain on assets sold – net (5,361) 693 9,248 7,491 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 59,483 (137,061) 231,420 40,716 
Income tax expense (804) (999) (2,185) (2,690)
Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint venture 383 545 (254) 1,728 
Net income (loss) 59,062 (137,515) 228,981 39,754 
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Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (2,456) 5,837 (9,619) (1,735)
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 56,606 $ (131,678) $ 219,362 $ 38,019 
﻿
Earnings per common share available to common stockholders:
Basic:
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 0.28 $ (0.67) $ 1.10 $ 0.19 
Diluted:
Net income (loss) $ 0.28 $ (0.67) $ 1.10 $ 0.19 
﻿
Weighted-average shares outstanding, basic 200,910 197,890 199,773 197,445 
Weighted-average shares outstanding, diluted 210,437 206,662 208,905 206,502 
﻿

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

3
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OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Unaudited

(in thousands)

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿ Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
﻿ September 30, September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017 2018 2017
﻿
Net income (loss) $ 59,062 $ (137,515) $ 228,981 $ 39,754 
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation (3,518) 5,022 (9,802) 19,630 
Cash flow hedges 1,196 2,351 7,472 198 
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (2,322) 7,373 (2,330) 19,828 
Comprehensive income (loss) 56,740 (130,142) 226,651 59,582 
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (2,359) 5,524 (9,521) (2,579)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 54,381 $ (124,618) $ 217,130 $ 57,003 
﻿

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
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﻿

OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Unaudited

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿ Accumulated
﻿ Common Additional Cumulative Other Total
﻿ Stock Paid-in Net Cumulative ComprehensiveStockholders’ NoncontrollingTotal
﻿ Par Value Capital Earnings Dividends Loss Equity Interest Equity
Balance at
December 31,
2017 (198,309
common shares &
8,772 Omega OP
Units) $ 19,831 $ 4,936,302 $ 1,839,356 $ (3,210,248) $ (30,150) $ 3,555,091 $ 333,167 $ 3,888,258 
 Cumulative effect
of accounting
change (see Note
1)  -  - 9,577  -  - 9,577 423 10,000 
Balance at
January 1, 2018
(198,309 common
shares & 8,772
Omega OP Units) 19,831 4,936,302 1,848,933 (3,210,248) (30,150) 3,564,668 333,590 3,898,258 
Grant of restricted
stock to company
directors (38
shares at $30.36
per share) 4 (4)  -  -  -  -  -  -
Stock-based
compensation
expense  - 12,107  -  -  - 12,107  - 12,107 
Vesting/exercising
of equity
compensation
plan, net of tax
withholdings (89
shares) 9 (1,663)  -  -  - (1,654)  - (1,654)

126 36,778  -  -  - 36,904  - 36,904 

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

14



Dividend
reinvestment and
stock purchase
plan (1,257 shares
at an average of
$29.36 per share)
Deferred
compensation
directors (35
shares at $30.42
per share) 3 191  -  -  - 194  - 194 
Equity Shelf
Program (912
shares at $29.82
per share, net of
issuance costs) 91 27,111  -  -  - 27,202  - 27,202 
Common
dividends
declared ($1.98
per share)  -  -  - (395,933)  - (395,933)  - (395,933)
Conversion of
Omega OP Units
to common stock
(53 share at
$32.98 per share) 5 1,722  -  -  - 1,727  - 1,727 
Redemption of
Omega OP Units
(57 units at
$32.52 per share)  -  -  -  -  -  - (1,845) (1,845)
Omega OP Units
distributions  -  -  -  -  -  - (17,645) (17,645)
Comprehensive
income:
Foreign currency
translation  -  -  -  - (9,390) (9,390) (412) (9,802)
Cash flow hedges  -  -  -  - 7,158 7,158 314 7,472 
Net income  -  - 219,362  -  - 219,362 9,619 228,981 
Total
comprehensive
income 226,651 
Balance at
September 30,
2018 (200,693
shares & 8,715
Omega OP Units) $ 20,069 $ 5,012,544 $ 2,068,295 $ (3,606,181) $ (32,382) $ 3,462,345 $ 323,621 $ 3,785,966 
﻿

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

﻿
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﻿

OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Unaudited (in thousands)

﻿

﻿
﻿ Nine Months Ended
﻿ September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 228,981 $ 39,754 
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 210,681 212,268 
Impairment on real estate properties 31,860 35,610 
Impairment on direct financing leases 15 197,968 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 6,363 13,667 
Interest - amortization of deferred financing costs 6,723 17,468 
Accretion of direct financing leases 89 (6,139)
Stock-based compensation expense 12,107 11,350 
Gain on assets sold – net (9,248) (7,491)
Amortization of acquired in-place leases - net (7,518) (9,101)
Effective yield receivable on mortgage notes (889) (1,558)
Interest paid-in-kind (4,944)  -
Change in operating assets and liabilities – net:
Contractual receivables 2,265 (35,418)
Straight-line rent receivables (46,787) (13,559)
Lease inducements (32,315) 1,342 
Other operating assets and liabilities (48,918) (28,893)
Net cash provided by operating activities 348,465 427,268 
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of real estate (52,744) (345,268)
Net proceeds from sale of real estate investments 246,351 69,788 
Investments in construction in progress (98,760) (69,409)
Investments in direct financing leases  - (6,951)
Proceeds from sale of direct financing lease 16,947 33,074 
Placement of mortgage loans (62,185) (29,324)
Collection of mortgage principal 25,612 1,058 
Distributions from unconsolidated joint venture 4,407 10,966 
Capital improvements to real estate investments (24,425) (25,293)
Receipts from insurance proceeds 6,911  -
Investments in other investments (374,784) (86,075)
Proceeds from other investments 162,118 45,045 
Cash acquired  - 2,341 
Net cash used in investing activities (150,552) (400,048)
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Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from credit facility borrowings 1,003,000 1,487,000 
Payments on credit facility borrowings (933,000) (1,312,000)
Receipts of other long-term borrowings  - 1,346,749 
Payments of other long-term borrowings (2,049) (1,252,463)
Payments of financing related costs (8) (29,198)
Receipts from dividend reinvestment plan 36,904 30,136 
Payments for exercised options and restricted stock (1,654) (2,120)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 27,202 22,196 
Dividends paid (395,738) (373,424)
Redemption of Omega OP Units (118) (48)
Distributions to Omega OP Unit Holders (17,645) (16,819)
Net cash used in financing activities (283,106) (99,991)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (476) 409 
Decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (85,669) (72,362)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 96,808 107,276 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $ 11,139 $ 34,914 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.

﻿

﻿
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OHI HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿

﻿ September
30, December 31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (Unaudited)
ASSETS
Real estate properties
Real estate investments $ 7,700,636 $ 7,655,960 
Less accumulated depreciation (1,515,846) (1,376,828)
Real estate investments – net 6,184,790 6,279,132 
Investments in direct financing leases – net 163,467 364,965 
Mortgage notes receivable – net 708,178 671,232 
﻿ 7,056,435 7,315,329 
Other investments – net 511,668 276,342 
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture 32,159 36,516 
Assets held for sale – net 17,826 86,699 
Total investments 7,618,088 7,714,886 
﻿
Cash and cash equivalents 9,768 85,937 
Restricted cash 1,371 10,871 
Accounts receivable – net 336,825 279,334 
Goodwill 644,201 644,690 
Other assets 31,711 37,587 
Total assets $ 8,641,964 $ 8,773,305 
﻿
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY
Term loan – net $ 99,521 $ 99,423 
Secured borrowings – net  - 53,098 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 205,583 226,028 
Deferred income taxes 14,198 17,747 
Intercompany loans payable 4,536,696 4,488,751 
Total liabilities 4,855,998 4,885,047 
﻿
Owners’ Equity:
General partners’ equity 3,462,345 3,555,091 
Limited partners’ equity 323,621 333,167 
Total owners’ equity 3,785,966 3,888,258 
Total liabilities and owners’ equity $ 8,641,964 $ 8,773,305 
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See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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﻿

OHI HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Unaudited

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿ Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
﻿ September 30, September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenue
Rental income $ 192,276 $ 194,063 $ 579,075 $ 580,597 
Income from direct financing leases 264 614 1,374 31,722 
Mortgage interest income 18,396 16,920 51,809 49,173 
Other investment income 10,259 7,245 27,883 21,437 
Miscellaneous income 657 796 1,791 4,250 
Total operating revenues 221,852 219,638 661,932 687,179 
﻿
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization 70,711 71,925 210,681 212,268 
General and administrative 14,240 11,560 45,952 35,625 
Acquisition costs  -  -  - (22)
Impairment on real estate properties 22,868 17,837 26,685 35,610 
Impairment on direct financing leases  - 194,659 15 197,968 
(Recovery) provision for uncollectible accounts (2,000) 11,899 6,363 13,667 
Total operating expenses 105,819 307,880 289,696 495,116 
﻿
Income (loss) before other income and expense 116,033 (88,242) 372,236 192,063 
Other income (expense)
Interest income and other - net (1,214) 4 496 262 
Interest expense (47,764) (47,383) (143,857) (140,509)
Interest – amortization of deferred financing costs (2,238) (2,228) (6,723) (7,273)
Interest – refinancing costs  -  -  - (21,965)
Contractual settlement  -  -  - 10,412 
Realized gain on foreign exchange 27 95 20 235 
Total other expense (51,189) (49,512) (150,064) (158,838)
﻿
Income (loss) before (loss) gain on assets sold 64,844 (137,754) 222,172 33,225 
(Loss) gain on assets sold – net (5,361) 693 9,248 7,491 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 59,483 (137,061) 231,420 40,716 
Income tax expense (804) (999) (2,185) (2,690)
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Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint venture 383 545 (254) 1,728 
Net income (loss) $ 59,062 $ (137,515) $ 228,981 $ 39,754 
﻿
Earnings per unit:
Basic:
Net income (loss) $ 0.28 $ (0.67) $ 1.10 $ 0.19 
Diluted:
Net income (loss) $ 0.28 $ (0.67) $ 1.10 $ 0.19 
﻿
Weighted-average Omega OP Units outstanding, basic 209,625 206,662 208,523 206,231 
Weighted-average Omega OP Units outstanding, diluted 210,437 206,662 208,905 206,502 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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OHI HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Unaudited

(in thousands)

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿ Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
﻿ September 30, September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017 2018 2017
﻿
Net income (loss) $ 59,062 $ (137,515) $ 228,981 $ 39,754 
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation (3,518) 5,022 (9,802) 19,630 
Cash flow hedges 1,196 2,351 7,472 198 
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (2,322) 7,373 (2,330) 19,828 
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 56,740 $ (130,142) $ 226,651 $ 59,582 
﻿

﻿

﻿

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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﻿

OHI HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY

Unaudited

(in thousands)

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿ General Limited
﻿ Partners’ Partners’ Total General Limited Total
﻿ Omega Omega Omega Partners’ Partners’ Owners’
﻿ OP Units OP Units OP Units Equity Equity Equity
﻿
Balance at December 31, 2017 198,309 8,772 207,081 $ 3,555,091 $ 333,167 $ 3,888,258 
 Cumulative effect of accounting change
(see Note 1)  -  -  - 9,577 423 10,000 
Balance at January 1, 2018 198,309 8,772 207,081 3,564,668 333,590 3,898,258 
Contributions from partners 2,384  - 2,384 76,480  - 76,480 
Distributions to partners  -  -  - (395,933) (17,645) (413,578)
Omega OP Unit redemptions  - (57) (57)  - (1,845) (1,845)
Comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation  -  -  - (9,390) (412) (9,802)
Cash flow hedges  -  -  - 7,158 314 7,472 
Net income  -  -  - 219,362 9,619 228,981 
Total comprehensive income 226,651 
Balance at September 30, 2018 200,693 8,715 209,408 $ 3,462,345 $ 323,621 $ 3,785,966 
﻿

﻿

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

﻿

﻿
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OHI HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Unaudited (in thousands)

﻿

﻿
﻿ Nine Months Ended
﻿ September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 228,981 $ 39,754 
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 210,681 212,268 
Impairment on real estate properties 31,860 35,610 
Impairment loss on direct financing leases 15 197,968 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 6,363 13,667 
Interest - amortization of deferred financing costs 6,723 17,468 
Accretion of direct financing leases 89 (6,139)
Stock-based compensation expense 12,107 11,350 
Gain on assets sold – net (9,248) (7,491)
Amortization of acquired in-place leases - net (7,518) (9,101)
Effective yield receivable on mortgage notes (889) (1,558)
Interest paid-in-kind (4,944)  -
Change in operating assets and liabilities – net:
Contractual receivables 2,265 (35,418)
Straight-line rent receivables (46,787) (13,559)
Lease inducements (32,315) 1,342 
Other operating assets and liabilities (48,918) (28,893)
Net cash provided by operating activities 348,465 427,268 
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of real estate (52,744) (345,268)
Net proceeds from sale of real estate investments 246,351 69,788 
Investments in construction in progress (98,760) (69,409)
Investments in direct financing leases  - (6,951)
Proceeds from sale of direct financing lease 16,947 33,074 
Placement of mortgage loans (62,185) (29,324)
Collection of mortgage principal 25,612 1,058 
Distributions from unconsolidated joint venture 4,407 10,966 
Capital improvements to real estate investments (24,425) (25,293)
Receipts from insurance proceeds 6,911  -
Investments in other investments (374,784) (86,075)
Proceeds from other investments 162,118 45,045 
Cash acquired  - 2,341 
Net cash used in investing activities (150,552) (400,048)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from intercompany loans payable to Omega 1,003,000 2,833,749 
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Repayment of intercompany loans payable to Omega (935,049) (2,564,463)
Payment of financing related costs incurred by Omega (8) (29,198)
Equity contributions from general partners 62,452 50,212 
Distributions to general partners (395,738) (373,424)
Distributions to limited partners (17,645) (16,819)
Redemption of Omega OP Units (118) (48)
Net cash used in financing activities (283,106) (99,991)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (476) 409 
Decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (85,669) (72,362)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 96,808 107,276 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $ 11,139 $ 34,914 
﻿

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

﻿
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OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC. AND OHI HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unaudited

September 30, 2018

﻿

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

﻿

Business Overview and Organization

﻿

Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. (“Omega”) was formed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) and incorporated in the
State of Maryland on March 31, 1992.  Omega is structured as an umbrella partnership REIT (“UPREIT”) under which
all of Omega's assets are owned directly or indirectly by, and all of Omega's operations are conducted directly or
indirectly through, its operating partnership subsidiary, OHI Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership (“Omega
OP”).  Omega OP was formed as a limited partnership and organized in the State of Delaware on October 24,
2014.  Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the terms the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” means
Omega and Omega OP, collectively.

﻿

The Company has one reportable segment consisting of investments in healthcare-related real estate properties located
in the United States (“U.S.”) and the United Kingdom (“U.K.”).  Our core business is to provide financing and capital to
the long-term healthcare industry with a particular focus on skilled nursing facilities (“SNFs”) and, to a lesser extent,
assisted living facilities (“ALFs”), independent living facilities and rehabilitation and acute care facilities.  Our core
portfolio consists of long-term leases and mortgage agreements.  All of our leases are “triple-net” leases, which require
the tenants to pay all property-related expenses.  Our mortgage revenue derives from fixed rate mortgage loans, which
are secured by first mortgage liens on the underlying real estate and personal property of the mortgagor.  Our other
investment income derives from fixed and variable rate loans, which are either unsecured or secured by the collateral
of the borrower.     

﻿

Omega OP is governed by the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of OHI Healthcare
Properties Limited Partnership, dated as of April 1, 2015 (the “Partnership Agreement”).  Omega has exclusive control
over Omega OP’s day-to-day management pursuant to the Partnership Agreement.  As of September 30, 2018, Omega
owned approximately 96% of the issued and outstanding units of partnership interest in Omega OP (“Omega OP
Units”), and investors owned approximately 4% of the outstanding Omega OP Units.

﻿

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

27



Basis of Presentation

﻿

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) regarding interim financial information and with the
instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X.  Accordingly, they do not include all of the information
and notes required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for complete financial statements.  In
our opinion, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have
been included.  The results of operations for the interim periods reported herein are not necessarily indicative of
results to be expected for the full year.  These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and the footnotes thereto included in our latest Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the SEC on February 23, 2018. 

﻿

Omega’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of (i) Omega, (ii) Omega OP, and (iii) all direct and
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Omega.  All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation,  and Omega’s net earnings are reduced by the portion of net earnings attributable to noncontrolling
interests.

﻿

Omega OP’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of (i) Omega OP, and (ii) all direct and indirect
wholly owned subsidiaries of Omega OP.  All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation. 

﻿

﻿
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Variable Interest Entities

﻿

GAAP requires us to identify entities for which control is achieved through means other than voting rights and to
determine which business enterprise is the primary beneficiary of variable interest entities (“VIEs”). A VIE is broadly
defined as an entity with one or more of the following characteristics: (a) the total equity investment at risk is
insufficient to finance the entity’s activities without additional subordinated financial support; (b) as a group, the
holders of the equity investment at risk lack (i) the ability to make decisions about the entity’s activities through voting
or similar rights, (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity, or (iii) the right to receive the expected
residual returns of the entity; or (c) the equity investors have voting rights that are not proportional to their economic
interests, and substantially all of the entity’s activities either involve, or are conducted on behalf of, an investor that has
disproportionately few voting rights.  We may change our original assessment of a VIE upon subsequent events such
as the modification of contractual arrangements that affects the characteristics or adequacy of the entity’s equity
investments at risk and the disposition of all or a portion of an interest held by the primary beneficiary.

﻿

Our variable interests in VIEs may be in the form of equity ownership, leases, guarantees and/or loans with our
operators.  We analyze our agreements and investments to determine whether our operators or unconsolidated joint
venture are VIEs and, if so, whether we are the primary beneficiary. 

﻿

We consolidate a VIE when we determine that we are its primary beneficiary. We identify the primary beneficiary of a
VIE as the enterprise that has both: (i) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the
entity’s economic performance; and (ii) the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits of the VIE that
could be significant to the entity.  Factors considered in determining whether we are the primary beneficiary of an
entity include: (i) our voting rights, if any; (ii) our involvement in day-to-day capital and operating decisions; (iii) our
risk and reward sharing; (iv) the financial condition of the operator or joint venture and (iv) our representation on the
VIE’s board of directors.   We perform this analysis on an ongoing basis.

﻿

As of September 30, 2018, we have not consolidated any VIEs, as we do not have the power to direct the activities of
any VIEs that most significantly impact their economic performance and we do not have the obligation to absorb
losses or receive benefits of the VIEs that could be significant to the entity.  See Note 6 – Variable Interest Entities.      

﻿

Cash and Cash Equivalents

﻿

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months
or less when purchased.  These investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.  The majority of our
cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash are held at major commercial banks.  Certain cash account balances exceed
FDIC insurance limits of $250,000 per account and, as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to
amounts in excess of the insurance limits.  We regularly monitor the financial stability of these financial institutions
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and believe that we are not exposed to any significant credit risk in cash, cash equivalents or restricted cash.

﻿

Restricted Cash

﻿

Restricted cash consists primarily of liquidity deposits escrowed for tenant obligations required by us pursuant to
certain contractual terms.  Prior to June 1, 2018, restricted cash also included other deposits required by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) in connection with our mortgage borrowings guaranteed by
HUD.  For additional information see Note 2 – Properties and Investments and Note 14 – Borrowing Activities and
Arrangements.
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﻿

Real Estate Investment Impairment

﻿

Management evaluates our real estate investments for impairment indicators at each reporting period, including the
evaluation of our assets’ useful lives.  The judgment regarding the existence of impairment indicators is based on
factors such as, but not limited to, market conditions, operator performance including the current payment status of
contractual obligations and expectations of the ability to meet future contractual obligations, legal structure, as well as
our intent with respect to holding or disposing of the asset.  If indicators of impairment are present, management
evaluates the carrying value of the related real estate investments in relation to management’s estimate of future
undiscounted cash flows of the underlying facilities.  The estimated future undiscounted cash flows are generally
based on the related lease which relates to one or more properties and may include cash flows from the eventual
disposition of the asset.  In some instances, there may be various potential outcomes for a real estate investment and
its potential future cash flows.  In these instances, the undiscounted future cash flows used to assess the recoverability
are probability-weighted based on management’s best estimates as of the date of evaluation.  Provisions for impairment
losses related to long-lived assets are recognized when expected future undiscounted cash flows based on our intended
use of the property are determined to be less than the carrying values of the assets.  An adjustment is made to the net
carrying value of the real estate investments for the excess of carrying value over fair value.  The fair value of the real
estate investment is determined based on current market conditions and considers matters such as rental rates and
occupancies for comparable properties, recent sales data for comparable properties, and, where applicable, contracts or
the results of negotiations with purchasers or prospective purchasers.  Additionally, our evaluation of fair value may
consider valuing the property as a nursing home as well as alternative uses.  All impairments are taken as a period cost
at that time, and depreciation is adjusted going forward to reflect the new value assigned to the asset.  Management’s
impairment evaluation process, and when applicable, impairment calculations involve estimation of the future cash
flows from management’s intended use of the property as well as the fair value of the property.  Changes in the facts
and circumstances that drive management’s assumptions may result in an impairment of the Company’s assets in a
future period that could be material to the Company’s results of operations. 

﻿

For the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we recognized impairment on real estate properties of
$22.9 million and $17.8 million, respectively.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we
recognized impairment on real estate properties of $26.7 million and $35.6 million, respectively.  For additional
information see Note 2 – Properties and Investments.

﻿

Allowance for Losses on Mortgages, Other Investments and Direct Financing Leases

﻿

The allowances for losses on mortgage notes receivable, other investments and direct financing leases (collectively,
our “loans”) are maintained at a level believed adequate to absorb potential losses.  The determination of the allowances
is based on a quarterly evaluation of these loans, including general economic conditions and estimated collectability of
loan payments.  We evaluate the collectability of our loans based on a combination of factors, including, but not
limited to, delinquency status, financial strength of the borrower and guarantors, if applicable, and the value of the
underlying collateral. If such factors indicate that there is greater risk of loan charge-offs, additional allowances or
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placement on non-accrual status may be required.  A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events,
it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due as scheduled according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreements.  Consistent with this definition, all loans on non-accrual status may be deemed impaired. To the
extent circumstances improve and the risk of collectability is diminished, we will return these loans to full accrual
status.  When management identifies potential loan impairment indicators, the loan is written down to the present
value of the expected future cash flows.  In cases where expected future cash flows are not readily determinable, the
loan is written down to the fair value of the underlying collateral, if applicable.  We may base our valuation on a loan’s
observable market price, if any, or the fair value of collateral, net of sales costs, if the repayment of the loan is
expected to be provided solely by the sale of the collateral.   
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﻿

We account for impaired loans using (a) the cost-recovery method, and/or (b) the cash basis method.  We generally
utilize the cost-recovery method for impaired loans for which impairment reserves were recorded.  We utilize the cash
basis method for impaired loans for which no impairment reserves were recorded because the net present value of the
discounted cash flows expected under the loan and/or the underlying collateral supporting the loan were equal to or
exceeded the book value of the loan.  Under the cost-recovery method, we apply cash received against the outstanding
loan balance prior to recording interest income.  Under the cash basis method, we apply cash received to principal or
interest income based on the terms of the agreement.  As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had
$81.0 million and $177.5 million, respectively, of reserves on our loans.  For additional information see Note 3 – Direct
Financing Leases, Note 4 – Mortgage Notes Receivable and Note 5 – Other Investments. 

﻿

Goodwill Impairment

﻿

We assess goodwill for potential impairment during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or during the year if an
event or other circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover the carrying amount of the net assets of the
reporting unit.  In evaluating goodwill for impairment on an interim basis, we assess qualitative factors such as a
significant decline in real estate valuations, current macroeconomic conditions, state of the equity and capital markets
and our overall financial and operating performance or a significant decline in the value of our market capitalization,
to determine whether it is more likely than not (that is, a likelihood of more than 50 percent) that the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount.  On an annual basis during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or on
an interim basis if we conclude it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying
value, we perform a two-step goodwill impairment test to identify potential impairment and measure the amount of
impairment we will recognize, if any. 

﻿

Noncontrolling Interests

﻿

Noncontrolling interests is the portion of equity not attributable to the respective reporting entity.  We present the
portion of any equity that we do not own in consolidated entities as noncontrolling interests and classify those
interests as a component of total equity, separate from total stockholders’ equity, or owners’ equity on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets.  We include net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests in net income in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

﻿

As our ownership of a controlled subsidiary increases or decreases, any difference between the aggregate
consideration paid to acquire the noncontrolling interests and our noncontrolling interest balance is recorded as a
component of equity in additional paid-in capital, so long as we maintain a controlling ownership interest.

﻿
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The noncontrolling interest for Omega represents the outstanding Omega OP Units held by outside investors. 

﻿

Foreign Operations

﻿

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for our consolidated subsidiaries operating in the U.S.  The functional
currency for our consolidated subsidiaries operating in the U.K. is the British Pound (“GBP”).  For our consolidated
subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar (“USD”), we translate their financial statements into the
USD.  We translate assets and liabilities at the exchange rate in effect as of the financial statement date.  Revenue and
expense accounts are translated using an average exchange rate for the period.  Gains and losses resulting from
translation are included in Omega OP’s owners’ equity and Omega’s accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCL”), as
a separate component of equity and a proportionate amount of gain or loss is allocated to noncontrolling interests.

﻿

We and certain of our consolidated subsidiaries may have intercompany and third-party debt that is not denominated
in the entity’s functional currency.  When the debt is remeasured against the functional currency of the entity, a gain or
loss can result.  The resulting adjustment is reflected in results of operations, unless it is intercompany debt that is
deemed to be long-term in nature in which case the adjustments are included in Omega OP’s owners’ equity and
Omega’s AOCL and a proportionate amount of gain or loss is allocated to noncontrolling interests.

15

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

34



﻿

Derivative Instruments

﻿

Cash flow hedges

﻿

During our normal course of business, we may use certain types of derivative instruments for the purpose of managing
interest rate and currency risk.  To qualify for hedge accounting, derivative instruments used for risk management
purposes must effectively reduce the risk exposure that they are designed to hedge.  In addition, at the inception of a
qualifying cash flow hedging relationship, the underlying transaction or transactions, must be, and are expected to
remain, probable of occurring in accordance with the Company’s related assertions.  The Company recognizes all
derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives required to be bifurcated, as assets or liabilities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value which is determined using a market approach and Level 2
inputs.  Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are not designated in hedging relationships or that do
not meet the criteria of hedge accounting are recognized in earnings.  For derivatives designated in qualifying cash
flow hedging relationships, the gain or loss on the derivative is recognized in Omega OP’s owners’ equity and Omega’s
AOCL as a separate component of equity and a proportionate amount of gain or loss is allocated to noncontrolling
interest.  We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our
risk-management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.  This process includes
designating all derivatives that are part of a hedging relationship to specific forecasted transactions as well as
recognized liabilities or assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  We also assess and document, both at inception of
the hedging relationship and on a quarterly basis thereafter, whether the derivatives are highly effective in offsetting
the designated risks associated with the respective hedged items.  If it is determined that a derivative ceases to be
highly effective as a hedge, or that it is probable the underlying forecasted transaction will not occur, we discontinue
hedge accounting prospectively and record the appropriate adjustment to earnings based on the current fair value of
the derivative.  As a matter of policy, we do not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.  At September 30,
2018 and December 31, 2017, $8.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively, of qualifying cash flow hedges were
recorded at fair value in other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

﻿

Net investment hedge

﻿

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in the GBP against its functional currency, the USD, relating to its
investments in healthcare-related real estate properties located in the U.K.  The Company uses a nonderivative,
GBP-denominated term loan to manage its exposure to fluctuations in the GBP-USD exchange rate. The foreign
currency transaction gain or loss on the nonderivative hedging instrument that is designated and qualifies as a net
investment hedge is reported in Omega OP’s owners’ equity and Omega’s AOCL in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

﻿

Accounts Receivable
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﻿

Accounts receivable includes: contractual receivables, effective yield interest receivables, straight-line rent receivables
and lease inducements, net of an estimated provision for losses related to uncollectible and disputed
accounts.  Contractual receivables relate to the amounts currently owed to us under the terms of our lease and loan
agreements.  Effective yield interest receivables relate to the difference between the interest income recognized on an
effective yield basis over the term of the loan agreement and the interest currently due to us according to the
contractual agreement.  Straight-line rent receivables relate to the difference between the rental revenue recognized on
a straight-line basis and the amounts currently due to us according to the contractual agreement.  Lease inducements
result from value provided by us to the lessee, at the inception, modification, or renewal of the lease, and are
amortized as a reduction of rental revenue over the non-cancellable lease term.

16
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On a quarterly basis, and more frequently as appropriate, we review our accounts receivable to determine their
collectability.  The determination of collectability of these assets requires significant judgment and is affected by
several factors relating to the credit quality of our operators that we regularly monitor, including (i) payment history,
(ii) the age of the contractual receivables, (iii) the current economic conditions and reimbursement environment, (iv)
the ability of the tenant to perform under the terms of their lease and/or contractual loan agreements and (v) the value
of the underlying collateral of the agreement, if any.  If we determine collectability of any of our contractual
receivables is at risk, we estimate the potential uncollectible amounts and provide an allowance.  In the case of a lease
recognized on a straight-line basis, a loan recognized on an effective yield basis or the existence of lease inducements,
we generally provide an allowance for straight-line, effective interest, and/or lease inducement accounts receivable
when certain conditions or indicators of adverse collectability are present.  If the accounts receivable balance is
subsequently deemed uncollectible, the receivable and allowance for doubtful account balance are written off. 

﻿

A summary of our net receivables by type is as follows:

﻿

﻿

﻿ September
30,

December
31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (in thousands)
Contractual receivables $ 36,917 $ 43,258 
Effective yield interest receivables 12,562 11,673 
Straight-line rent receivables 241,113 216,054 
Lease inducements 49,221 16,812 
Allowance (2,988) (8,463)
Accounts receivable – net $ 336,825 $ 279,334 

﻿

During the first quarter of 2018, we wrote-off approximately $7.8 million of straight-line rent receivables to provision
for uncollectible accounts, as a result of facility transitions to other operators.

﻿

During the second quarter of 2018, we placed two of our operators on a cash basis for revenue recognition purposes
and wrote-off approximately $2.8 million of straight-line rent receivables and reserved approximately $0.6 million of
contractual receivables to provision for uncollectible accounts related to these two operators.  The provision for
uncollectible accounts was offset by a recovery of approximately $2.8 million.  

﻿

During the third quarter of 2018, the provision for uncollectible accounts was offset by a recovery of approximately
$2.0 million. 

﻿
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During the first quarter of 2018, we paid an existing operator approximately $50 million in exchange for a reduction
of such operator’s participation in an in-the-money purchase option.  As a result, we recorded an approximate $28
million lease inducement that will be amortized as a reduction to rental income over the remaining term of the
lease.  The remaining $22 million was recorded as a reduction to the initial contingent liability which was included in
accrued expenses and other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

﻿

Reclassification

﻿

Certain prior quarter amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current quarter presentation.
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Accounting Pronouncements Adopted in 2018

﻿

In 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“ASU 2014-09”), which outlines a comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers.  ASU 2014-09 states that “an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.”  While ASU 2014-09 specifically references contracts with
customers, it may apply to certain other transactions such as the sale of real estate or equipment.  In addition, the
FASB issued targeted updates to clarify specific implementation issues of ASU 2014-09.  These updates included
ASU 2016-08, Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net), ASU
2016-10, Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing, and ASU 2016-12, Narrow-Scope Improvements and
Practical Expedients.  As a result of adopting ASU 2014-09 and its updates on January 1, 2018, the Company
recognized $10.0 million of deferred gain resulting from the sale of facilities to a third-party in December 2017
through opening equity on January 1, 2018.  The Company adopted ASU 2014-09 and its subsequent updates in
accordance with the modified retrospective approach.    The adoption of ASU 2014-09 and its related updates did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements, as a substantial portion of our revenue consists of
rental income from leasing arrangements and interest income from loan arrangements, both of which are specifically
excluded from ASU 2014-09 and its updates.

﻿

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Improvements to Accounting for
Hedging Activities (“ASU 2017-12”).  The purpose of this updated guidance is to better align the financial reporting for
hedging activities with the economic objectives of those activities.  The transition guidance provides companies with
the option of early adopting the new standard using a modified retrospective transition method in any interim period
after issuance of the update, or alternatively requires adoption for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2018.  This adoption method will require the Company to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying ASU
2017-12 as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) with a corresponding adjustment to the
opening balance of equity as of the beginning of the fiscal year that an entity adopts the update.  On January 1, 2018,
the Company adopted ASU 2017-12 using the modified retrospective transition method.  As a result of adopting the
standard, the Company  made certain adjustments to its existing hedge designation documentation for active hedging
relationships in order to take advantage of specific provisions in the new guidance and to fully align its documentation
with ASU 2017-12.  The adoption of ASU 2017-12 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.   

﻿

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Pending Adoption

﻿

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (“ASU 2016-02”), which amends the existing accounting
standards for lease accounting, including requiring lessees to recognize most leases on their balance sheets and
making targeted changes to lessor accounting. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for the Company beginning January 1,
2019.  Early adoption of ASU 2016-02 as of its issuance is permitted.  The new standard requires a modified
retrospective transition approach for all leases existing at, or entered into after, the date of initial application, with an
option to use certain transition relief.  As a result of the pending adoption of ASU 2016-02, the Company may be
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required to record real estate tax revenues and an equal and offsetting real estate tax expense, as a result of our
operators paying real estate taxes on our behalf, subject to further amendment.  In addition, the Company will be
required to recognize a right of use asset and corresponding lease liability for assets that the Company leases.  In July
2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases: Targeted Improvements (“ASU 2018-11”) to simplify the implementation
of ASU 2016-02.  This targeted improvement permits the adoption of ASU 2016-02 at the adoption date instead of the
earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements and a practical expedient permitting lessors to not
separate nonlease components from the associated lease component if certain conditions are met.  Upon adoption of
ASU 2016-02 and its updates, we intend to transition to the new leasing accounting standard on January 1, 2019,
without modifying our prior year balance sheet and recognizing the cumulative-effect adjustment to opening
equity.  We continue to evaluate the other impacts of adopting ASU 2016-02 and its updates on our consolidated
financial statements.
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In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) (“ASU 2016-13”),
which changes the impairment model for most financial assets.  The new model uses a forward-looking expected loss
method, which will generally result in earlier recognition of allowances for losses.  ASU 2016-13 is effective for
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and early adoption is permitted for annual and interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2018.  We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-13 on our
consolidated financial statements. 

﻿

﻿

NOTE 2 – PROPERTIES AND INVESTMENTS

﻿

Leased Property

﻿

Our leased real estate properties consisted of 720 SNFs, 116 ALFs, 14 specialty facilities and one medical office
building at September 30, 2018.  These properties are leased under provisions of single or master operating leases
with initial terms typically ranging from five to 15 years, plus renewal options.  Also see Note 3 – Direct Financing
Leases for information regarding additional properties accounted for as direct financing leases.    Substantially all of
our operating leases contain provisions for specified annual increases over the rents of the prior year and are generally
computed in one of three methods depending on specific provisions of each lease as follows: (i) a specific annual
percentage increase over the prior year’s rent, generally between 2.0% and 3.0%; (ii) an increase based on the change
in pre-determined formulas from year to year (e.g., increases in the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”)); or (iii) specific
dollar increases over prior years.  Under the terms of the leases, the lessee is responsible for all maintenance, repairs,
taxes and insurance on the leased properties.

﻿

A summary of our investment in leased real estate properties is as follows:

﻿

﻿
﻿

﻿
September
30, December 31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (in thousands)
Buildings $ 6,064,061 $ 6,098,119 
Land 785,040 795,874 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 446,036 440,737 
Site improvements 246,836 227,150 
Construction in progress 158,663 94,080 
   Total real estate investments 7,700,636 7,655,960 
Less accumulated depreciation (1,515,846) (1,376,828)
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Real estate investments - net $ 6,184,790 $ 6,279,132 
﻿

The following table summarizes the significant acquisitions that occurred in 2018: 

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿

﻿ Number of Total
Building &
Site Furniture Initial

﻿ Facilities Country/ Investment Land Improvements
&
Fixtures Annual

Period SNF ALF State (in millions) Cash Yield(3) 
Q1  - 1 UK $ 4.0 (1) $ 0.9 $ 2.9 $ 0.2 8.5 %
Q1  - 1 UK 5.7 (2) 1.4 4.1 0.2 8.5 %
Q1  1  - PA 7.4 1.6 5.4 0.4 9.5 %
Q1  1  - VA 13.2 2.4 10.5 0.3 9.5 %
Q2  5  - TX 22.8 0.5 20.4 1.9 9.5 %
Total  7 2 $ 53.1 $ 6.8 $ 43.3 $ 3.0 

﻿

﻿
(1) Omega recorded a non-cash deferred tax liability of approximately $0.4 million in connection with this

acquisition.
(2) Omega recorded a non-cash deferred tax liability of approximately $0.2 million in connection with this

acquisition.
(3) The cash yield is based on the purchase price.
﻿
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, we acquired two parcels of land (not reflected in the table above) for
approximately $3.5 million with the intent of building new facilities for our existing operators.

﻿

During the third quarter of 2018, we transitioned 21 SNFs and one ALF subject to direct financing leases (not
reflected in the table above) with a net carrying value of approximately $184.5 million from an existing operator to
five existing operators subject to single or master operating leases with an initial annual cash yield of approximately
9%.  We recorded approximately $184.5 million of real estate investments consisting of land ($11.2 million), building
and site improvements ($159.1 million) and furniture and fixtures ($14.2 million) in partial satisfaction of the direct
financing lease.  In connection with these transitions, we provided the new operators with working capital loans with a
maximum borrowing capacity of $35.7 million, commitments to fund capital improvements up to $10.6 million and
indemnities with a maximum funding of $7.4 million.  Claims against these indemnities must occur within 18 months
to 36 months.  These indemnities were provided to the new operators upon transition and would be utilized in the
event that the prior operator does not perform under its transition agreements.  The Company does not expect to fund a
material amount under these indemnity agreements.

﻿

Asset Sales, Impairments and Other

﻿

During the first quarter of 2018, we sold 14 facilities (five of which were previously held for sale at December 31,
2017) subject to operating leases for approximately $74.7 million in net cash proceeds recognizing a gain on sale of
approximately $17.5 million.  In addition, we recorded impairments on real estate properties of approximately $4.9
million on 17 facilities (16 of which were subsequently reclassified to assets held for sale). 

﻿

During the second quarter of 2018, we sold 45 facilities and one ancillary building (33 of which were previously held
for sale at March 31, 2018) subject to operating leases for approximately $147.2 million in net cash proceeds
recognizing a loss on sale of approximately $2.9 million.  In addition, we recorded impairments of approximately $4.1
million on nine facilities (three of which were subsequently reclassified to assets held for sale).  Our second quarter
2018 impairments were offset by $5.2 million of insurance proceeds received related to a facility destroyed in
November 2017.  

﻿

Of the 45 facilities sold during the second quarter of 2018, we sold 12 SNFs on June 1, 2018 (12 of which were
previously held for sale at March 31, 2018) secured by HUD mortgages to subsidiaries of an existing operator.  The
Company sold the 12 SNF facilities with carrying values of approximately $62 million for approximately $78 million
which consisted of $25 million of cash consideration and their assumption of approximately $53 million of our HUD
mortgages.  See Note 14 – Borrowing Activities and Arrangements for additional details.  Simultaneously, subsidiaries
of the operator assumed our HUD restricted cash accounts, deposits and escrows.  The Company recorded a gain on
sale of approximately $11 million after approximately $5 million of closing and other transaction related costs.  In
connection with this sale, we provided a principal of an existing operator an unsecured loan of approximately $39.7
million.  See Note 5 – Other Investments for details.      
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﻿

During the third quarter of 2018, we sold five facilities and one ancillary building (one of which was previously held
for sale at June 30, 2018) subject to operating leases for approximately $24.4 million in net cash proceeds recognizing
a loss on sale of approximately $5.4 million.  In addition, we recorded impairments of approximately $22.9 million on
eight facilities (five of which were subsequently reclassified to assets held for sale).

﻿

Our recorded impairments were primarily the result of decisions to exit certain non-strategic facilities and/or
operators.  We reduced the net book value of the impaired facilities to their estimated fair values or, with respect to the
facilities reclassified to assets held for sale, to their estimated fair values less costs to sell.  To estimate the fair value
of the facilities, we utilized a market approach which considered binding sale agreements (a Level 1 input) and/or
Level 3 inputs which generally consist of non-binding offers from unrelated third parties.  Also see Note 8 – Assets
Held For Sale.
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﻿

﻿

NOTE 3 – DIRECT FINANCING LEASES

﻿

The components of investments in direct financing leases consist of the following:

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
September
30,

December
31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (in thousands)
Minimum lease payments receivable $ 28,577 $ 64,893 
Less unearned income (16,839) (37,633)
Investment in non-Orianna direct financing leases 11,738 27,260 
Investment in Orianna direct financing leases 227,776 509,877 
Less allowance for loss on Orianna direct financing leases (76,047) (172,172)
Investment in direct financing leases – net $ 163,467 $ 364,965 
﻿
Properties subject to direct financing leases 18 41 
Number of direct financing leases 3 5 

﻿

The following minimum rents are due under our direct financing leases for the remainder of 2018 and the subsequent
five years (in thousands):

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿
﻿
2018(1) 2019(1) 2020(1) 2021(1) 2022(1) 2023(1)
$ 294 $ 1,166 $ 1,170 $ 1,084 $ 1,106 $ 1,128

﻿

﻿

﻿
(1) Amounts due from Orianna have been excluded from the contractual minimum rent payments due under our

direct financing leases as the facilities are expected to be transitioned or sold.  See below for additional
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information.
﻿

In June 2018, we sold one SNF with a carrying value of approximately $15.4 million subject to a direct financing
lease to an unrelated third-party for approximately $15.4 million. 

﻿

Orianna Direct Financing Lease and Operating Lease

﻿

On November 27, 2013, we closed an aggregate $529 million purchase/leaseback transaction in connection with the
acquisition of Ark Holding Company, Inc. (“Ark Holding”) by 4 West Holdings Inc.  At closing, we acquired 55 SNFs
and 1 ALF operated by Ark Holding and leased the facilities back to Ark Holding, now known as New Ark
Investment Inc. (“New Ark” which does business as “Orianna Health Systems” and is herein referred to as “Orianna”),
pursuant to four 50-year master leases providing for contractual rental payments yielding 10.6% per annum over the
term of the leases.  The purchase/leaseback transaction is being accounted for as a direct financing lease.

﻿

The 16 facilities remaining under our master lease with Orianna as of September 30, 2018 are located in South
Carolina (14), Georgia (1) and Tennessee (1).  Our recorded investment in this direct financing lease, net of the $76.0
million allowance, amounted to $151.7 million as of September 30, 2018.  We have not recognized any direct
financing lease income from Orianna for the period from July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018.

﻿

Orianna has not satisfied the contractual payments due under the terms of the remaining direct financing lease or the
separate operating lease covering four facilities with the Company and the collectability of future amounts due is
uncertain.    

21
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In March 2018, Orianna commenced voluntary Chapter 11 proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the
Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division (the “Bankruptcy Court”).  As described in Orianna’s filings with the
Bankruptcy Court, we entered into a Restructuring Support Agreement (“RSA”) that was expected to form the basis for
Orianna’s restructuring.  The RSA provided for the recommencement, in April 2018, of partial rent payments at $1.0
million per month and established a specific timeline for the implementation of Orianna’s planned restructuring.  The
RSA provided for the transition of 23 facilities to new operators and the potential sale of the remaining 19 facilities
subject to the plan of reorganization as approved by the Bankruptcy Court.  On July 25, 2018, Omega terminated the
restructuring support agreement with its tenant, 4 West Holdings, and the sponsor of Orianna’s restructuring
plan.  During the third quarter of 2018, we transitioned 22 facilities with a net carrying value of approximately $184.5
million from Orianna to five existing operators with annual contractual rent of approximately $16.8 million.  See Note
2 – Properties and Investments.  In addition, we sold Orianna’s headquarters with a carrying value of approximately
$1.5 million to an unrelated third-party for approximately $1.5 million. 

﻿

To provide liquidity to Orianna during their Chapter 11 proceedings, we entered into a senior secured superpriority
debtor-in-possession (“DIP”) credit agreement with Orianna for a revolving credit and term loan DIP facility of up
to $30 million, which DIP facility was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on an interim basis on March 9, 2018 and
on a final basis on May 14, 2018.  On July 23, 2018, we notified Orianna that it was in default under the DIP
facility.  See Note 5 – Other Investments.

﻿

In 2017, we recorded an allowance for loss on direct financing leases of $172.2 million with Orianna covering 38
facilities in the Southeast region of the U.S.  The amount of the allowance was determined based on the fair value of
the facilities subject to the direct financing lease. To estimate the fair value of the underlying collateral, we utilized an
income approach and Level 3 inputs.  Our estimate of fair value assumed annual rents ranging between $32.0 million
and $38.0 million, rental yields between 9% and 10%, current and projected operating performance of the facilities,
coverage ratios and bed values.  Such assumptions are subject to change based on changes in market conditions and
the ultimate resolution of this matter.  Such changes could be significantly different than the currently estimated fair
value and such differences could have a material impact on our financial statements.  During the third quarter of 2018,
we reduced our investment in the Orianna direct financing leases and the corresponding allowance for loss by
approximately 55%, as a result of the transition of 22 facilities to five existing operators. 

﻿

In addition to our direct financing leases with Orianna, we own four facilities and lease them to Orianna under a
master lease which expires in 2026.  The four facility lease is being accounted for as an operating lease.  We have not
recognized any income on this operating lease for the period from July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018, as
Orianna did not pay the contractual amounts due and collectability is uncertain.  Our recorded investment in the four
facilities subject to this operating lease was $36.8 million as of September 30, 2018.  Subsequent to September 30,
2018, Orianna rejected the lease of these four facilities and as a result we expect to transition these facilities to other
existing operators.  

﻿

NOTE 4 – MORTGAGE NOTES RECEIVABLE
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﻿

As of September 30, 2018, mortgage notes receivable relate to six fixed rate mortgage notes on 53 long-term care
facilities.  The mortgage notes are secured by first mortgage liens on the borrowers' underlying real estate and
personal property.  The mortgage notes receivable relate to facilities located in six states that are operated by five
independent healthcare operating companies.  We monitor compliance with mortgages and when necessary have
initiated collection, foreclosure and other proceedings with respect to certain outstanding mortgage notes. 

﻿

Mortgage interest income is recognized as earned over the terms of the related mortgage notes, typically using the
effective yield method.  Allowances are provided against earned revenues from mortgage interest when collection of
amounts due becomes questionable or when negotiations for restructurings of troubled operators lead to lower
expectations regarding ultimate collection.  When collection is uncertain, mortgage interest income on impaired
mortgage loans is recognized as received after taking into account the application of security deposits.
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The principal amounts outstanding of mortgage notes receivable, net of allowances, were as follows:

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
September
30,

December
31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (in thousands)
﻿
Mortgage note due 2027; interest at 10.18% $ 112,500 $ 112,500 
Mortgage notes due 2029; interest at 9.86% (1) 534,780 476,320 
Other mortgage notes outstanding (2) 65,803 87,317 
Mortgage notes receivable, gross 713,083 676,137 
Allowance for loss on mortgage notes receivable (3) (4,905) (4,905)
Total mortgages — net $ 708,178 $ 671,232 

﻿

﻿

﻿
(1) Approximates the weighted average interest rate on 39 facilities.  Two notes totaling approximately $18.7

million are construction mortgages maturing in 2018 and 2019.  The remaining loan balance matures in 2029.  
(2) Other mortgage notes outstanding have a weighted average interest rate of 11.25% per annum and maturity dates

between 2018 and 2028.
(3) The allowance for loss on mortgage notes receivable relates to one mortgage with an operator.  The carrying

value and fair value of the mortgage note receivable is approximately $1.5 million at September 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017.

﻿

$112.5 Million of Mortgage Note due 2027

﻿

On January 17, 2014, we entered into a $112.5 million first mortgage loan with an existing operator.  The loan is
secured by seven SNFs and two ALFs located in Pennsylvania and Ohio, respectively.  The mortgage is
cross-defaulted and cross-collateralized with our existing master lease with the operator.  In March 2018, we extended
the maturity date to January 31, 2027 and provided an option to extend the maturity for a five year period through
January 31, 2032 and a second option to extend the maturity through September 30, 2034.        

﻿

$534.8 Million of Mortgage Notes due 2029

﻿

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

49



On June 30, 2014, we entered into a mortgage loan agreement with Ciena Healthcare (“Ciena”) to refinance/consolidate
$117 million in existing mortgages with maturity dates ranging from 2021 to 2023 on 17 facilities into one mortgage
and simultaneously provide mortgage financing for an additional 14 facilities.  The $415 million mortgage (the “Master
Mortgage”) matures in 2029 and is secured by 30 facilities.  The Master Mortgage note bore an initial interest rate of
9.0% per annum which increases each year by 0.225% per annum.  As of September 30, 2018, the outstanding
principal balance of the Master Mortgage note is approximately $409.6 million and the interest rate is 9.9% per
annum.   

﻿

Subsequent to June 30, 2014, the Company amended its Master Mortgage with Ciena to provide for additional
borrowings in the form of incremental facility mortgages, construction and/or improvement mortgages with maturity
dates in 2018,  2019 and 2029 with initial annual interest rates ranging between 8.5% and 10% and fixed annual
escalators of 2% or 2.5% over the prior year’s interest rate, or a fixed increase of 0.225% per annum.  As of September
30, 2018 the outstanding principal balance of these mortgage notes are approximately $81.0 million.

﻿

In June 2018, we amended the Master Mortgage with the addition of a $44.7 million mortgage note related to five
SNFs located in Michigan.  The mortgage note matures on June 30, 2029 and bears an initial annual interest rate of
9.5% which increases each year by 0.225%.  As of September 30, 2018 the outstanding principal balance of this
mortgage note is approximately $44.2 million.  Additionally, the Company committed to fund an additional $9.6
million to Ciena if certain performance metrics are achieved by the portfolio.    

﻿

The mortgage notes with Ciena are cross-defaulted and cross-collateralized with our existing master lease and other
investment notes with the operator. 

﻿

Mortgage notes paid off

﻿

In January 2018, one of our operators repaid two construction loans with a total outstanding balance of approximately
$21.2 million.  These construction loans bore interest at 8.75%.

﻿

23

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

50



﻿

NOTE 5 – OTHER INVESTMENTS

﻿

A summary of our other investments is as follows:

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
September
30,

December
31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (in thousands)
Other investment notes due 2018 - 2022; interest at 9.64% (1) $ 40,242 $ 15,115 
Other investment notes due 2019 - 2023; interest at 11.13% (1) 22,120 40,985 
Other investment note due 2019; interest at 9.35% 131,675  -
Other investment notes due 2020; interest at 13.06% (1) 69,590 49,490 
Other investment notes due 2021 - 2024; interest at 6.00% 39,423 7,000 
Other investment notes due 2023; interest at 7.32%  (1) 65,000 64,050 
Other investment note due 2023; interest at 12.00% 59,389 49,708 
Other investment notes due 2024 - 2025; interest at 8.41% (1) 45,287 31,987 
Other investment notes outstanding (2) 38,942 18,380 
Other investments, gross 511,668 276,715 
Allowance for loss on other investments (3)  - (373)
Total other investments $ 511,668 $ 276,342 

﻿

﻿
(1) Approximate weighted average interest rate as of September 30, 2018.
(2) Other investment notes have a weighted average interest rate of 8.60% and maturity dates through 2029.
(3) The allowance for loss on other investments relates to one loan with an operator that was fully reserved at

December 31, 2017 and written off during the second quarter of 2018.
﻿

Other investment notes due 2018 - 2022

﻿

In March 2018, we agreed to provide senior secured superpriority DIP financing to Orianna consisting of a $14.2
million term loan and a $15.8 million revolving credit facility.  The DIP financing has been approved by the
Bankruptcy Court.  The DIP financing is secured by a security interest in and liens on substantially all of Orianna’s
existing and future real and personal property.  The $14.2 million term loan bears interest at 1-month LIBOR plus
5.5% per annum and matured on September 30, 2018.  Orianna has borrowed the full amount of the term loan to repay
their previous secured working capital lender.  As of September 30, 2018, approximately $14.2 million is outstanding
on this term loan.  The $15.8 million revolving credit facility bears interest at 1-month LIBOR plus 9.0% per annum
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and matured on September 30, 2018.  The borrowings under the revolving credit facility are to be used for general
business expenses and other uses permitted under the loan documents.  As of September 30, 2018, approximately
$10.8 million is outstanding on this revolving credit facility. 

﻿

On July 23, 2018, Omega notified Orianna that it was in default under the DIP facility and, as a result of such default,
Omega (a) declared the amounts owing under the DIP facility to be immediately due and payable, (b) terminated the
DIP facility and any further commitment of Omega to extend credit to Orianna under the DIP facility, and (c)
restricted Orianna’s use of cash collateral solely to payment of those amounts contained in a budget approved by
Omega.  Omega also informed Orianna that while Omega did not (as of such date) intend to immediately collect
amounts owing under the DIP facility, Omega may at any time in the future exercise further rights and remedies under
the DIP facility.

﻿

In May 2017, we provided Orianna an $18.8 million maximum borrowing secured revolving working capital loan
that  bears interest at 9% per annum (with one-half (1/2) of all accrued interest to be paid-in-kind and added to the
loan balance) and matures on April 30, 2022.  This revolving working capital loan has a default rate of 5% per annum.
   As of September 30, 2018, approximately $15.2 million is outstanding on this revolving working capital
loan.  Pursuant to the Bankruptcy Court’s interim order approving the DIP financing, Orianna is obligated to pay
one-half (1/2) of all accrued post-bankruptcy interest payable on this revolving working capital loan at the default
rate.  As of September 30, 2018, our total other investments outstanding with Orianna was approximately $40.2
million.

﻿
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Other investment note due 2019

﻿

On September 28, 2018, we provided a $131.3 million secured term loan to an unrelated third party.  The loan is
secured by a collateral assignment of mortgages covering seven SNFs, three independent living facilities and one
ALF.  The loan bears interest at 9.35% per annum and matures on February 28, 2019, subject to a one-time 90-day
extension.  The loan requires monthly interest payments with the principal balance due at maturity.  The borrower
used the proceeds to repay existing indebtedness and pay a one-time distribution to its equity holders.  In connection
with this loan we incurred approximately $0.4 million of origination costs which are deferred and recognized over the
term of the loan.  The outstanding balance on this loan was $131.7 million including origination costs at September
30, 2018.          

﻿

Other investment notes due 2020

﻿

On July 29, 2016, we provided Genesis HealthCare, Inc. (“Genesis”) a $48.0 million secured term loan bearing interest
at LIBOR with a floor of 1% plus 13% maturing on July 29, 2020.  The $48.0 million term loan (and the $16.0 million
term loan discussed below) is secured by a perfected first priority lien on and security interest in certain collateral of
Genesis.  The term loan required monthly principal payments of $0.25 million through July 2019, and $0.5 million
from August 2019 through maturity.  In addition, a portion of the monthly interest accrued to the outstanding principal
balance of the loan.  In November 2017, we provided Genesis forbearance through February 2018.  The forbearance
allowed for the deferral of principal payments and permitted Genesis to accrue all interest due to the outstanding
principal balance of the loan. 

﻿

On March 6, 2018, we amended certain terms of the $48.0 million secured term loan.  As of February 22, 2018, the
$48.0 million term loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 14% per annum, of which 9% per annum will be
paid-in-kind.  Additionally, the amended term loan does not require monthly payments of principal.  All principal and
accrued and unpaid interest will be due at maturity on July 29, 2020.  As of September 30, 2018, approximately $53.2
million is outstanding on this term loan.   

﻿

Also on March 6, 2018, we provided Genesis an additional $16.0 million secured term loan bearing interest at a fixed
rate of 10% per annum, of which 5% per annum will be paid-in-kind and matures on July 29, 2020.  As of September
30, 2018, approximately $16.4 million is outstanding on this term loan.  As of September 30, 2018, our total other
investments outstanding with Genesis was approximately $69.6 million. 

﻿

Other investment note due 2021

﻿
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Simultaneously with the sale of 12 SNFs to subsidiaries of an existing operator we provided a principal of the existing
operator a $39.7 million unsecured loan bearing interest at 6% per annum that matures on May 31, 2021.  The loan
requires quarterly principal payments of $0.6 million commencing on October 1, 2018 and additional quarterly
principal payments of $0.3 million in the future.  The borrower has one option to extend the loan to May 31, 2024
subject to an extension fee.  A $7.0 million loan provided to the same principal in 2017 was repaid with proceeds from
the $39.7 million loan. 

﻿

On August 1, 2018, we amended the $39.7 million unsecured loan mentioned above to provide an additional $5.1
million unsecured loan to fund a lease termination fee in connection with the sale of two facilities.  The $5.1 million
unsecured loan bears interest at 6% per annum and matures on May 31, 2024.  The lease termination fee has been
deferred and is being recognized over the remaining term of the lease with this operator.  As of September 30, 2018,
approximately $39.4 million is outstanding on this unsecured loan.    
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Other investment note due 2023

﻿

On February 26, 2016, we acquired and funded a $50.0 million mezzanine loan at a discount of approximately $0.75
million.  In May 2018, the Company amended the mezzanine loan with the borrower which is secured by an equity
interest in subsidiaries of the borrower.  As part of the refinancing, the Company increased the mezzanine loan by
$10.0 million, extended the maturity date to May 31, 2023 and fixed the interest rate at 12% per annum.  The
mezzanine loan requires semi-annual principal payments of $2.5 million commencing December 31, 2018.  As of
September 30, 2018, our total other investments outstanding with this borrower was approximately $59.4 million.  In
connection with the amendment, the Company recognized fees of approximately $1.1 million of which $0.5 million
was paid at closing with the remainder due at maturity.  The discount and loan fees are deferred and are being
recognized on an effective basis over the term of the loan.

﻿

Other investment note due 2024-2025

﻿

On September 30, 2016, we acquired and amended a term loan with a fair value of approximately $37.0 million with
Agemo Holdings LLC (“Agemo” an entity formed in May 2018 to silo the leases and loans formerly held by Signature
Healthcare).  A $5.0 million tranche of the term loan that bore interest at 13% per annum was repaid in August
2017.  The remaining $32.0 million tranche of the term loan bears interest at 9% per annum and currently matures on
December 31, 2024.  The $32.0 million term loan (and the $25.0 million working capital loan discussed below) is
secured by a security interest in the collateral of Agemo.   

﻿

On May 7, 2018, the Company provided Agemo a $25.0 million secured working capital loan bearing interest at 7%
per annum that matures on April 30, 2025.  The proceeds of the working capital loan are for paying operating
expenses, settlement payments, fees, taxes and other costs approved by the Company.  As of September 30, 2018,
approximately $13.3 million is outstanding on this working capital loan.  Our total loans outstanding with Agemo at
September 30, 2018 approximate $45.3 million.    On May 7, 2018, the Company also provided principals of Agemo a
one year unsecured $2.8 million loan.  The proceeds were used to pay down the Company’s contractual receivables
outstanding.     

﻿

Other investments note

﻿

On December 28, 2017, we provided $10.0 million of financing to a third-party to acquire ten SNFs previously owned
by us.  The loan bears interest at 10% per annum and requires principal payments of $5.0 million in December 2018,
$2.0 million in December 2019 and $3.0 million at maturity in December 2020.  In March 2018, the third-party buyer
repaid $5.0 million related to this financing.

﻿
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NOTE 6 – VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

﻿

As of September 30, 2018, Orianna and Agemo are VIEs.  Below is a summary of our assets and liabilities associated
with each operator as of September 30, 2018:        

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿
﻿ Operator
﻿ Orianna Agemo
﻿ (in thousands)
Assets
 Real estate investments - net $ 36,778 $ 415,632 
 Investments in direct financing leases - net 151,729  -
 Other investments - net 40,242 45,287 
 Contractual receivables - net 236 17,593 
 Straight-line rent receivables  - 31,447 
 Lease inducement  - 1,323 
 Above market lease  - 3 
Subtotal 228,985 511,285 
﻿
Liabilities
 Letters of credit  - (9,253)
Subtotal  - (9,253)
﻿
Collateral
 Personal guarantee  - (15,000)
 Other collateral (213,743) (415,632)
Subtotal (213,743) (430,632)
﻿
Maximum exposure to loss $ 15,242 $ 71,400 
﻿

In determining our maximum exposure to loss from these VIEs, we considered the underlying value of the real estate
subject to leases with these operators and other collateral, if any, supporting our other investments, which may include
accounts receivable, security deposits, letters of credit or personal guarantees, if any.  See Note 5 – Other Investments
regarding the terms of other investments with these two operators and Note 16 – Commitments and Contingencies
regarding our commitment to provide capital expenditure funding to our operators which includes Agemo.      
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﻿

The table below reflects our total revenues from Orianna and Agemo for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2018:    

﻿

﻿
﻿

﻿

Three Months
Ended September
30, 2018

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2018

﻿ Operator Operator
﻿ Orianna Agemo Orianna Agemo
﻿ (in thousands)
Revenue
 Rental income $  - $ 14,810 $  - $ 44,521 
 Other investment income 1,058 973 2,721 2,521 
Total $ 1,058 $ 15,783 $ 2,721 $ 47,042 
﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

NOTE 7 – INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURE

﻿

On November 1, 2016, we invested approximately $50.0 million for an approximate 15% ownership interest in a joint
venture operating as Second Spring Healthcare Investments.  The other approximate 85% interest is owned by
affiliates of Lindsey Goldberg LLC.  We account for our investment in the joint venture using the equity method.  On
November 1, 2016, the joint venture acquired 64 SNFs for approximately $1.1 billion and leased them to
Genesis.  During the second quarter of 2018, the joint venture sold 12 SNF facilities subject to an operating lease for
approximately $149.3 million in net cash proceeds and recognized a loss on sale of approximately $4.4
million.  During the third quarter of 2018, the joint venture sold one SNF facility subject to an operating lease for
approximately $14.7 million in net cash proceeds and recognized a loss on sale of approximately $0.2 million.  

﻿

We receive asset management fees from the joint venture for services provided.  For the three months ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, we recognized $0.5 million of asset management fees in each period.  For the nine
months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we recognized $1.5 million of asset management fees in each
period.  These fees are included in miscellaneous income in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.  The accounting policies for the unconsolidated joint venture are the same as those of the Company.
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﻿

﻿

NOTE 8 – ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

﻿

The following is a summary of our assets held for sale:

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
Properties Held
For Sale

﻿ NumberNet Book
﻿ of Value

﻿ Properties
(in
thousands)

﻿
December 31, 2017 22 $ 86,699 
Properties sold/other (1)    (5) (9,307)
Properties added (2) 16 66,027 
March 31, 2018 33 143,419 
Properties sold/other (1)    (33) (143,419)
Properties added (2) 3 3,782 
June 30, 2018 3 3,782 
Properties sold/other (1)    (1) (1,730)
Properties added (2) 8 15,774 
September 30, 2018(3) 10 $ 17,826 

﻿

﻿
(1) In the first quarter of 2018, we sold five facilities for approximately $13.1 million in net cash proceeds

recognizing a gain on sale of approximately $3.5 million.  In the second quarter of 2018, we sold 33 facilities for
approximately $96.4 million in net cash proceeds recognizing a gain on sale of approximately $3.5 million.  In
the third quarter of 2018, we sold one facility for approximately $1.6 million in cash proceeds recognizing a loss
on sale of approximately $0.1 million.

(2) In the first quarter of 2018, we recorded $3.5 million of impairments to reduce 16 facilities and one ancillary
building’s net book value to their estimated fair values less costs to sell before they were reclassified to assets
held for sale.  In the second quarter of 2018, we recorded approximately $2.5 million of impairments to reduce
three facilities’ net book value to their estimated fair values less cost to sell before they were reclassified to assets
held for sale.  In the third quarter of 2018, we recorded approximately $6.9 million of impairments to reduce five
facilities’ net book value to their estimated fair values less cost to sell before they were reclassified to assets held
for sale.

(3) We plan to sell the facilities classified as assets held for sale at September 30, 2018 within the next twelve
months.
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﻿

﻿

﻿

NOTE 9 – INTANGIBLES

﻿

The following is a summary of our intangibles as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
September
30,

December
31,

﻿ 2018 2017
﻿ (in thousands)
Assets:
Goodwill $ 644,201 $ 644,690 
﻿
Above market leases $ 22,426 $ 22,426 
In-place leases  - 167 
Accumulated amortization (17,602) (17,059)
Net intangible assets $ 4,824 $ 5,534 
﻿
Liabilities:
Below market leases $ 143,669 $ 164,443 
Accumulated amortization (74,435) (83,824)
Net intangible liabilities $ 69,234 $ 80,619 
﻿

Above market leases and in-place leases, net of accumulated amortization, are included in other assets on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Below market leases, net of accumulated amortization, are included in accrued
expenses and other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The net amortization related to the above and
below market leases is included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations as an adjustment to rental income.

﻿
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For the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, our net amortization related to intangibles was $2.2 million
and $2.9 million, respectively.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, our net amortization related
to intangibles was $7.5 million and $9.1 million, respectively.  The estimated net amortization related to these
intangibles for the remainder of 2018 and the subsequent four years is as follows: remainder of 2018 – $2.1 million;
2019 – $8.2 million; 2020 –  $8.0 million; 2021– $7.6 million and 2022 – $7.0 million.  As of September 30, 2018, the
weighted average remaining amortization period of above market leases and below market leases is approximately
seven years and nine years, respectively.

﻿

The following is a summary of our goodwill as of September 30, 2018:

﻿

﻿

﻿
(in
thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 $ 644,690 
Less: foreign currency translation (489)
Balance as of September 30, 2018 $ 644,201 
﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

NOTE 10 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

﻿

As of September 30, 2018, our portfolio of real estate investments consisted of 932 healthcare facilities, located in 41
states and the U.K. and operated by 67 third-party operators.  Our investment in these facilities, net of impairments
and allowances, totaled approximately $8.6 billion at September 30, 2018, with approximately 99% of our real estate
investments related to long-term care facilities.  Our portfolio is made up of 738 SNFs, 116 ALFs, 14 specialty
facilities, one medical office building, fixed rate mortgages on 51 SNFs and two ALFs, and ten facilities that are held
for sale.  At September 30, 2018, we also held other investments of approximately $511.7 million, consisting
primarily of secured loans to third-party operators of our facilities and a $32.2 million investment in an
unconsolidated joint venture. 
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﻿

At September 30, 2018, we had investments with one operator/or manager that exceeded 10% of our total
investments: Ciena.  Ciena also generated approximately 10% of our total revenues for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2018 and 2017.  At September 30, 2018, the three states in which we had our highest
concentration of investments were Texas (10%), Florida (10%) and Michigan (8%). 

﻿

NOTE 11 – STOCKHOLDERS’/OWNERS’ EQUITY

﻿

The Board of Directors has declared common stock dividends as set forth below:

﻿

﻿

﻿

Record Payment
Dividend
per

Date Date
Common
Share

January 31, 2017 February 15, 2017 $ 0.62 
May 1, 2017 May 15, 2017 0.63 
August 1, 2017 August 15, 2017 0.64 
October 31, 2017 November 15, 2017 0.65 
January 31, 2018 February 15, 2018 0.66 
April 30, 2018 May 15, 2018 0.66 
July 31, 2018 August 15, 2018 0.66 
October 31, 2018 November 15, 2018 0.66 

﻿

On the same dates listed above, Omega OP Unit holders received the same distributions per unit as those paid to the
common stockholders of Omega.   

﻿

$500 Million Equity Shelf Program

﻿

For the three months ended September 30, 2018, no shares of our common stock were issued under our $500 million
Equity Shelf Program.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, we issued 0.9 million shares of our common
stock at an average price of $29.82 per share, net of issuance costs, generating net proceeds of $27.2 million.
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﻿

Dividend Reinvestment and Common Stock Purchase Plan

﻿

For the three months ended September 30, 2018, approximately 0.3 million shares of our common stock at an average
price of $31.82 per share were issued through our Dividend Reinvestment and Common Stock Purchase Plan for gross
proceeds of approximately $9.9 million.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, approximately 1.3 million
shares of our common stock at an average price of $29.36 per share were issued through our Dividend Reinvestment
and Common Stock Purchase Plan for gross proceeds of approximately $36.9 million. 

﻿

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

﻿

The following is a summary of our accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax where applicable:  

﻿

﻿

﻿
﻿ As of and For the As of and For the
﻿ Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
﻿ September 30, September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017 2018 2017
﻿ (in thousands)
Foreign Currency Translation:
Beginning balance $ (35,417) $ (40,343) $ (26,033) $ (54,948)
Translation (loss) gain (5,165) 10,850 (14,542) 25,315 
Realized gain 27 95 20 235 
Ending balance (40,555) (29,398) (40,555) (29,398)
﻿
Derivative Instruments:
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance 7,739 (1,380) 1,463 (1,420)
Unrealized gain (loss) 1,248 (332) 7,218 (1,682)
Realized (loss) gain(1) (52) 490 254 1,880 
Ending balance 8,935 (1,222) 8,935 (1,222)
Net investment hedge:
Beginning balance (3,970) (2,190) (7,070)  -
Unrealized gain (loss) 1,620 (3,730) 4,720 (5,920)
Ending balance (2,350) (5,920) (2,350) (5,920)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss for Omega OP(2)    (33,970) (36,540) (33,970) (36,540)
Add: portion included in noncontrolling interest 1,588 1,697 1,588 1,697 
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss for Omega $ (32,382) $ (34,843) $ (32,382) $ (34,843)
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﻿

﻿

﻿
(1) Recorded in interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
(2) These amounts are included in owners’ equity.
﻿

﻿

NOTE 12 – TAXES

﻿

Omega is a REIT for United States federal income tax purposes, and Omega OP is a pass through entity for United
States federal income tax purposes. 

﻿

Since our inception, Omega has elected to be taxed as a REIT under the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code (“Code”).  A REIT is generally not subject to federal income tax on that portion of its REIT taxable income which
is distributed to its stockholders, provided that at least 90% of such taxable income is distributed each tax year and
certain other requirements are met, including asset and income tests.  So long as we qualify as a REIT under the Code,
we generally will not be subject to federal income taxes on the REIT taxable income that we distribute to
stockholders, subject to certain exceptions.

﻿
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If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Company will be subject to federal income taxes on
its taxable income at regular corporate rates and dividends paid to our stockholders will not be deductible by us in
computing taxable income. Further, we would not be permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT for federal income
tax purposes for four years following the year in which qualification is denied, unless the Internal Revenue Service
grants us relief under certain statutory provisions. Failing to qualify as a REIT could materially and adversely affect
the Company’s net income; however, we believe we are organized and operate in such a manner as to qualify for
treatment as a REIT.  We test our compliance within the REIT taxation rules to ensure that we are in compliance with
the REIT rules on a quarterly and annual basis. We review our distributions and projected distributions each year to
ensure we have met and will continue to meet the annual REIT distribution requirements. In 2018, we expect to pay
dividends in excess of our taxable income.

﻿

Subject to the limitation under the REIT asset test rules, we are permitted to own up to 100% of the stock of one or
more taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs”). We have elected for two of our active subsidiaries to be treated as TRSs.  One
of our TRSs is subject to federal, state and local income taxes at the applicable corporate rates and the other is subject
to foreign income taxes.  As of September 30, 2018, our TRS that is subject to federal, state and local income taxes at
the applicable corporate rates had a net operating loss carry-forward of approximately $5.8 million.  The loss
carry-forward is fully reserved as of September 30, 2018, with a valuation allowance due to uncertainties regarding
realization.  Our net operating loss carryforwards will be carried forward for no more than 20 years.

﻿

For the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we recorded approximately $0.2 million and $0.7 million,
respectively, of state and local income tax provision.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we
recorded approximately $0.6 million and $2.2 million, respectively, of state and local income tax provision.  For the
three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we recorded approximately $0.6 million and $0.3 million,
respectively, of tax provision for foreign income taxes.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, we
recorded approximately $1.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively, of tax provision for foreign income taxes.  The
expenses were included in income tax expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

﻿

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Tax Act") was enacted.  The Tax Act includes numerous
changes to existing U.S. tax law, including lowering the statutory U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to
21% effective January 1, 2018.  The Company has completed its preliminary assessment of these changes, and has
determined that there is an immaterial impact to the consolidated financial statements.

﻿

NOTE 13 – STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

﻿

On June 8, 2018, our stockholders approved the 2018 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan”), which amended and
restated the Company’s 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2013 Plan”).  The 2018 Plan is a comprehensive incentive
compensation plan that allows for various types of equity-based compensation, including restricted stock units
(including performance-based restricted stock units), stock awards (including restricted stock), deferred restricted
stock units, incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, dividend equivalent rights,
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performance unit awards, certain cash-based awards (including performance-based cash awards) and other
stock-based awards.  The 2018 Plan increases the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the
2013 Plan by 4.5 million.

﻿

The following is a summary of our stock-based compensation expense for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively: 

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
Three Months
Ended Nine Months Ended

﻿ September 30, September 30,
﻿ 2018 2017 2018 2017
﻿
﻿ (in thousands)
Stock-based compensation expense $ 3,962 $ 3,872 $ 12,107 $ 11,350 

﻿
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

﻿

Restricted stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) are subject to forfeiture if the holder’s service to us terminates prior
to vesting, subject to certain exceptions for certain qualifying terminations of service or a change in control of the
Company.  Prior to vesting, ownership of the shares/units cannot be transferred.  Restricted stock has the same
dividend and voting rights as our common stock.  RSUs accrue dividend equivalents but have no voting
rights.  Restricted stock and RSUs are valued at the price of our common stock on the date of grant.  We expense the
cost of these awards ratably over their vesting period.  We awarded 169,900 RSUs to employees on January 1, 2018.

﻿

Performance Restricted Stock Units and LTIP Units

﻿

Performance restricted stock units (“PRSUs”) and long term incentive plan units (“LTIP Units”) are subject to forfeiture if
the performance requirements are not achieved or if the holder’s service to us terminates prior to vesting, subject to
certain exceptions for certain qualifying terminations of employment or a change in control of the Company.  The
PRSUs and the LTIP Units have varying degrees of performance requirements to achieve vesting, and each PRSU and
LTIP Units award represents the right to a variable number of shares of common stock or partnership units.  Each
LTIP Unit once earned and vested is convertible into one Omega OP Unit in Omega OP, subject to certain
conditions.  The vesting requirements are based on either the (i) total shareholder return (“TSR”) of Omega or (ii)
Omega’s TSR relative to other real estate investment trusts in the MSCI U.S. REIT Index for awards before 2016 and
in the FTSE NAREIT Equity Health Care Index for awards granted in or after 2016 (both “Relative TSR”).  Vesting, in
general, requires that the employee remain employed by us until the date specified in the applicable PRSU or LTIP
agreement, which may be later than the date that the TSR or Relative TSR requirements are satisfied.  We expense the
cost of these awards ratably over their service period.

﻿

Prior to vesting and the distribution of shares, ownership of the PRSUs cannot be transferred.  Dividends on the
PRSUs are accrued and only paid to the extent the applicable performance requirements are met.  While each LTIP
Unit is unearned, the employee receives a partnership distribution equal to 10% of the quarterly approved regular
periodic distributions per Omega OP Unit.  The remaining partnership distributions (which in the case of normal
periodic distributions is equal to the total approved quarterly dividend on Omega’s common stock) on the LTIP Units
accumulate, and if the LTIP Units are earned, the accumulated distributions are paid. 

﻿

The number of shares or units earned under the TSR PRSUs or LTIP Units depends generally on the level of
achievement of Omega’s TSR over the indicated performance period.  We awarded 677,488 LTIP Units to employees
on January 1, 2018.

﻿

The number of shares earned under the Relative TSR PRSUs depends generally on the level of achievement of
Omega’s TSR relative to other real estate investment trusts in the MSCI U.S. REIT Index or FTSE NAREIT Equity
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Health Care Index TSR over the performance period indicated.  We awarded 334,544 Relative TSR PRSUs to
employees on January 1, 2018.
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﻿

The following table summarizes our total unrecognized compensation cost as of September 30, 2018 associated with
RSUs, PRSU awards, and LTIP Unit awards to employees:

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿

﻿
Grant
Date Total

Weighted
Average Unrecognized

﻿ Average Compensation
Period of
Expense Compensation

﻿ Grant Shares
Fair
Value  Cost Recognition  Cost Performance Vesting

﻿ Year / Units

 Per
Unit/
Share

(in
millions)
(1)   (in months)

(in
millions) Period Dates

RSUs
﻿
3/17/16  RSU 2016 130,006 $ 34.78 $ 4.50 33 $ 0.40 N/A 12/31/2018
1/1/2017  RSU 2017 140,416 31.26 4.40 36 1.80 N/A 12/31/2019
1/1/2018 RSU 2018 169,900 27.54 4.70 36 3.50 N/A 12/31/2020
Restricted Stock
Units Total 440,322 $ 30.86 $ 13.60 $ 5.70 
﻿
TSR PRSUs and
LTIP Units
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